1988

Wanda Marie Sackett Bagshaw v. Joseph Arthur Bagshaw : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION

This is an appeal from a final judgment in a civil domestic relations action filed within 30 days from the entry of the Order and Judgment. Jurisdiction is conferred on this Court pursuant to Utah Code Annotated, Section 78-2a-3, (1953, as amended), which grants to the Court jurisdiction in subparagraph 2(h) of matters concerning divorce.

NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This is a direct appeal in a civil case from a Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Judgment ruling that the Plaintiff was entitled to a Judgment for back due alimony in the sum of \$19,400.00.

ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

1. Did the Court err in not ruling that good cause existed to enter a Nunc Pro Tunc Order modifying the Decree of Divorce previously entered on November 28, 1973?

2. Did the Court err in applying and giving retroactive effect to the legal requirements set forth in *Brown v. Brown*, 744 P. 2d 333 (Utah, App. 1987)?

3. Did the Court err in not estopping the Plaintiff from enforcing a Judgment for alimony?

4. Did the Court err in finding that the Plaintiff, by making representations that alimony did not exist in the Decree and that she would sign an agreement vacating the alimony, waived her right to alimony after November, 1973?

DETERMINATIVE CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS

Utah Code Annotated, Section 30-4a-1 (1953, as amended), states as follows:

"A Court having jurisdiction may, upon it's finding of good cause and giving of such notice as may be ordered, enter an Order Nunc Pro Tunc in a matter relating to marriage, divorce, legal separation or annulment of marriage."

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Nature of the Case.

A Divorce Decree was entered in this case, based upon the Default Consent signed by the Defendant without an attorney, on January 10, 1973. In that Decree, the Defendant was ordered to pay to the Plaintiff \$200.00 per month as alimony pursuant to Paragraph 3 of the Divorce Decree. The Defendant filed an Order to Show Cause seeking modification of the Decree and termination of the

alimony award, dated June 13, 1973. The matter was brought on for hearing on November 28, 1973, at which time the Minute Entry reflected that a written Stipulation was reached between the parties.

On February 25, 1988, the Plaintiff filed with the Court an Order to Show Cause seeking Judgment for unpaid alimony arrearages for the 8 years preceding the Order to Show Cause. The Defendant moved the Court to enforce the previous Stipulation referred to in the November 24, 1973 minutes. The Defendant requested the Court enter the Order, Nunc Pro Tunc, terminating the alimony or, in the alternative, to find that the Plaintiff had cohabited since the date of the Divorce Decree and was no longer entitled to any award of alimony.

Judge J. Dennis Frederick found that the Plaintiff was entitled to a Judgment against the Defendant in the sum of \$19,400.00 because there was not an enforceable Stipulation entered into between the parties. The Court did not find that no agreement took place, but found instead that the agreement was not enforceable. The Court also ruled that the Plaintiff did not unlawfully cohabit subsequent to the entry of the Divorce Decree.

The Plaintiff received a Judgment based upon the written Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Order entered by the Court and the Defendant/Appellant has filed a timely Appeal.

B. Course of Proceeding.

The Complaint was filed in this case on April 7, 1972 (file document 000002). A Decree was entered January 10, 1973, originally pursuant to a Stipulation of the parties and the Default of the Defendant in 1973 concerning the Default Divorce (see attachments). At the time the Divorce Decree was entered, the Defendant was not represent by counsel. After the Divorce Decree was entered, the Defendant obtained legal counsel who filed a Petition for Order to Show Cause on May 17, 1973 alleging that the Decree of Divorce provided for alimony contrary to representations made by the Plaintiff to the Defendant that there would be no alimony (see file document 000016, attachment 1). An Order to Show Cause was entered on June 26, 1973 (see attachment 2).

The Defendant's Petition for Order to Show Cause was noticed for hearing on November 28, 1973. The Minute Entry indicated that based on the Stipulation of respective counsel, the Court ordered that the Order to Show Cause was continued pending written Stipulation and Order (see file document 000023, attached). The trial Judge at that time was the Honorable G. Hal Taylor.

When the Plaintiff filed an Order to Show Cause in February, 1988, to enforce alimony, this matter came on first before the Domestic Relations Commissioner of the Court, Sandra Peuler. The Commissioner entered a recommendation ruling in favor of the Plaintiff and the Defendant filed an objection. The objection came on for hearing before the Honorable J. Dennis Frederick of the Court and an evidentiary hearing was held before the Court on July

21, 1988. The Defendant called, as witnesses, both the Plaintiff and Defendant's prior attorneys, and his present wife, Darlene Bagshaw. The Plaintiff called as a witness the Plaintiff, Wanda Marie Sackett Bagshaw as a witness.

The Court took the matter under advisement and after receiving Memorandum from the parties, entered a Minute Entry which states:

This Court is not persuaded that the parties arrived at an enforceable Stipulation to modify the Decree of Divorce to eliminate alimony. *Brown v. Brown*, 744 P.2d 333 (Utah App., 1987).

C. Disposition at Trial Court.

The Plaintiff received a Judgment against the Defendant for the sum of \$19,400.00 to and including unpaid child support due to March 31, 1988 and each party was ordered to assume their own attorney's fees and costs.

RELEVANT FACTS

At the hearing, the Defendant called to the stand Darlene Bagshaw, the Defendant's new wife, who appeared with him at the time of the hearing on November 28, 1973. She indicated that she came with Mr. Bagshaw to the hearing which took place in the Third District Court (Transcript, Page 3). She testified that on the day before the hearing, she received a telephone call from the Plaintiff, the Defendant's ex-wife, Wanda Bagshaw (Page 4). She heard Joseph Bagshaw indicate to Wanda Bagshaw that there was Court on the following day and he made a threat to her concerning Court (Pg. 4). The next day, she appeared with her husband at Court where they met her husband's attorney, Mr. Gilbert Athay. The

witness recalled that Wanda Bagshaw's lawyer came up to them and indicated that Wanda was not going to appear that day because she was upset concerning the threats Joe had made to her (Pg. 5). She testified that on the day of the Court hearing, that the two attorneys, Wanda Bagshaw's attorney and her husband, Joseph Bagshaw's, attorney, went into a small room in the back of the Courtroom at which conversations took place concerning settling the case that day (Pg. 7). She indicated that her husband, Mr. Bagshaw, said that he would let go of his claim concerning the Jeep and his portion of a Federal Tax Return, which Wanda Bagshaw had taken and also agreed not to press charges against her for theft concerning the Jeep in exchange for her dropping the alimony charges. She recalled that Mr. Bagshaw had stated during the meeting that he didn't know that there had been alimony provisions placed in the Divorce Decree until his brother had read the Decree to him.

Darlene Bagshaw testified that an agreement was reached over the phone and that her lawyer represented that she was talking to Wanda Bagshaw and Wanda Bagshaw indicated that she had agreed to the settlement. She indicated that the attorneys were to draw up a Stipulation, that his portion of the Federal check was to go towards child support and that Joe would not press any theft charges concerning the Jeep and that the alimony would be dropped from the Divorce Decree (Pg. 8).

She indicated that after the meeting, her husband attempted to call attorney Gil Athay on several occasions to see whether or

not the papers had been completed (Pg. 9). Even though the papers were never completed, she indicated that her husband believed that the alimony amounts had been paid (Pg. 10).

Joseph Arthur Bagshaw was sworn as a witness and testified that at the time he signed the document allowing her to proceed to a default divorce, that he did not have an attorney and did not read at the time (Pg. 13). Mr. Bagshaw testified that his wife at the time, Wanda Bagshaw, in a telephone conversation from St. George, Utah said that she wanted a quick divorce and child support and that he merely sign the papers at the place where she indicated that he needed to sign and mail them back to her (Pg. 14). He indicated that after the Divorce Decree was entered, his brother read the Decree to him and he found out for the first time that he was paying \$200.00 in alimony (Pg. 15). After trying to contact Mrs. Bagshaw concerning the alimony, he retained Robert Van Sciver to act as his attorney and on May 17, 1973, he signed a document which was a Petition for Order to Show Cause.

1. That he is the Defendant in the above-entitled matter. That he is unable to read and that it was represented to the Defendant by the Plaintiff that he, if he executed certain documents, there would be no alimony.
2. That the Decree of Divorce entered herein provides for alimony and based upon such misrepresentations, the Defendant acquiesced in securing of a Decree of Divorce. Therefore, the same should be modified eliminating that provision relating to alimony.
3. Further, there has been the taking, by the Plaintiff of Income Tax Return, a portion of which should be paid to the Defendant. (See Petition for Order to Show Cause entered July 13, 1973 as part of the record in this matter, attached hereto.)

Mr. Bagshaw indicated that on the day of Court on November 28, 1973, an agreement was reached that there would be no alimony if he would drop the charges of her taking the Jeep and the Federal check (Pg. 18). He indicated that *"half the check would go to her and half would come to me but then we agreed that all of it would go to her because"* he was giving her his portion of the check as credit for child support. He indicated that she agreed to drop the alimony based upon his foregoing of filing any theft charges against her concerning the taking of the Jeep and that he fulfilled his part of the bargain by not pursuing the theft charges. In his presence at the time of the meeting between the attorneys on the day in question, he stated that he heard her attorney, Spencer Haycock, indicate that she had agreed to the proposal (Pg. 19). From the time of the Court hearing on November 28, 1973 until he received the Order to Show Cause in February, 1988, his ex-wife, Wanda, did not make any claims for any alimony, even though she did bring an action concerning child support through the Department of Social Services (Pg. 20). Exhibits were introduced in this matter that indicated that documents were served on him in February, 1986 concerning the child support obligations which were initiated by the Plaintiff, Wanda Bagshaw. On July 16, 1987, he reached an agreement fully settling the child support debt with the Department of Recovery Services (Pg. 21 and Exhibit "3").

Mr. Bagshaw testified that in 1975, his ex-wife, Wanda Bagshaw, informed him that she was expecting a child and was

pregnant (Pg. 24). Mr. Bagshaw stated that he had not had sexual relations with her and was not the father of the child (Pg. 25). He indicated that it was not until February of 1988 that he discovered that she was still making a claim for alimony despite the agreement of November, 1973 (Pg. 26).

The Defendant called as witnesses, both of the attorneys representing the parties at the November 28, 1973 hearing. D. Gilbert Athay testified that in 1973 he was a partner with Robert Van Sciver, the attorney who filed the Petition on behalf of Mr. Bagshaw (Transcript Vol. II, pg. 4). Mr. Athay testified that after hearing the testimony of Darlene Bagshaw and Joseph Bagshaw, that he did not have a recollection as to the events of November, 1973 (Pg. 5).

The Plaintiff's attorney in 1973 was Mr. Spencer Haycock (Pg. 7). Mr. Haycock testified that he, like Mr. Athay, did not have any independent recollection of the November 28th hearing. He did say that he had a limited recollection that his client had cashed a check and sold the Jeep and that the parties had come back to Court (Pg. 9).

The Defendant/Appellant also called as a witness Joseph Lavar Bagshaw (Vol. II, Pg 32). He testified that he was the son of the parties and lived with his mother, the Plaintiff, after the Divorce until 1980. In 1975, his mother gave birth to another child. Prior to that time, he saw male individuals at the residence but could not testify as to whether these persons stayed overnight.

Wanda Marie Sackett Bagshaw was called to testify as to her recollection of the proceedings (Vol. II, Pg. 15). She testified that she knew her ex-husband had retained an attorney and that she met with the attorneys (Pg. 17). She acknowledged that there was a dispute with her ex-husband over a Federal check and the Jeep automobile (Pg. 19). She stated that she did not verbally agree to waive alimony.

The Plaintiff/Respondent admitted that she gave birth to a child in 1975 (Pg. 26). She also testified that in 1972 she assigned to the Department of Recovery Service of the State of Utah the right to receive child support and alimony (Pg. 17). She acknowledged that from 1972 until 1981, she received public assistance and for a few months in 1984 (Pg. 16). She stated that during this period of time when she was receiving assistance, she was required to pay over any money she received for alimony to the Department of Recovery Services (Pg. 17). The Assignment of Collection of Support Payments was filed with the Court in 1975 when the State of Utah, Department of Social Services was joined as a party (see file document 000024 and 000025, attached).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. Did the Court err in not ruling that good cause existed to enter a Nunc Pro Tunc Order modifying the Decree of Divorce previously entered on November 28, 1973?

2. Did the Court err in applying and giving retroactive effect to the legal requirements set forth in *Brown v. Brown*, 744 P.2d 333 (Utah, App. 1987)?

3. Did the Court err in not estopping the Plaintiff from enforcing a Judgment for alimony?

4. Did the Court err in finding that the Plaintiff, by making representations that alimony did not exist in the Decree and that she would sign an agreement vacating the alimony, waived her right to alimony after November, 1973?

ARGUMENT

POINT I

GOOD CAUSE EXISTS FOR THE COURT TO ENTER A NUNC PRO TUNC ORDER MODIFYING THE DECREE AS OF NOVEMBER 28, 1973, BASED ON EITHER THE STIPULATION OR THE MERITS OF THE PENDING ACTION.

Utah Code Annotated, 30-4a-1 (As Amended, 1984) states:

A Court having jurisdiction may, upon its findings of good cause and giving of such notice as may be ordered, enter an order Nunc Pro Tunc in a matter relating to marriage, divorce, legal separation or annulment of marriage.

The first case interpreting this broad and remedial statute which is unique in Utah to domestic proceedings is the recent case of *Horne v. Horne*, 737 P.2d, 244 (Utah App. 1987). In this decision the Court of Appeals set forth for the first time the parameters of the Nunc Pro Tunc statute giving discretion to a court to grant special relief in domestic matters when errors or omissions occur. The Defendant respectfully submits that the trial Court had jurisdiction and authority to enter an order modifying the alimony provision of the Bagshaw Decree as of November 28, 1973, setting

aside and vacating the alimony provisions on agreement of the parties under the authority of the statute.

In *Horne*, the Court of Appeals discussed in detail the legislative history of *Utah Code Annotated, 30-4a-1, (1984)*, and indicated that the history of the Nunc Pro Tunc statute revealed "an intent to give to the courts broad discretion to enter orders Nunc Pro Tunc in domestic proceedings where an obvious injustice would otherwise result." The Court found that the statute applied to all aspects of domestic proceedings and was not limited to cases involving only marital status of the parties as under the former statute which it replaced.

Under common law and previous Utah decisions, the doctrine of Nunc Pro Tunc required a condition precedent that the Court find that a previous final order has been made at an earlier date. See for example, *Preece v. Preece*, 682 P.2d 288, (Utah, 1984). Thus, prior to enactment of the statute, an order could only be entered after a previously final order, a court could remedy only a prior accomplished act which arose to the status of a final order.

The Court in *Horne* ruled that the analysis and holding of *Preece v. Preece*, was statutorily overruled and that unlike common law, the Court only needs to find "good cause" to correct errors or supply omissions. The Court held that the statute gives to courts wide discretion to prevent "obvious injustices", and to accurately reflect that which in fact took place without the technical restraints under previous law.

The Utah Court of Appeals stated:

"The meaning of 'good cause' must be determined on a case by case basis, in light of all of the surrounding circumstances, or equity and justice required.

The Court, in reversing the trial Court's application of the statute in the *Horne* divorce, indicated that the statute should be applied to give effect to the parties' prior intentions and not to substitute the Court's judgment for the judgment of the parties.

Mr. Bagshaw proved to the trial Court that he would suffer an obvious injustice if the trial Court did not enter a Nunc Pro Tunc Order modifying the alimony provisions of the Decree. Judgment was entered against him and in favor of the Plaintiff for alimony which he had reasonably believed was resolved by Stipulation fifteen years prior to Plaintiff's Order to Show Cause. The Plaintiff, Mrs. Bagshaw, on the other hand, admitted that she did not demand or prosecute her purported claim for alimony until only recently, even though there had been payment demands and full payment of child support.

The Defendant established good cause under the special circumstances of this case, upon which the Court could have enforced the agreement, or granted Motion on the merits. Those include any of the following:

1. The original decree was a default decree based upon the Plaintiff's misrepresentation that no alimony would be in the decree.
2. At the time of the Consent to Enter Default, the Defendant could not read and relied on the Plaintiff, without consulting an attorney.

3. The hearing was noticed by Defendant's counsel for the date of November 28, 1973 and not by Plaintiff's counsel.
4. The Defendant's testimony and minute entry reflects that the parties intended to file a written stipulation to be reduced to an order and the alimony issue was the primary contention between the parties.
5. The Defendant forgave his claim for the funds from the forgery of his name on the check and the unauthorized taking of the Jeep and the Plaintiff admitted to the unauthorized acts.
6. The Plaintiff assigned to a governmental third party agency the right to collect alimony and had never actively pursued her claim until 1988 (see Exhibit concerning assignment with Recovery Services).
7. No alimony collection proceedings were ever instituted by the Plaintiff after November 28, 1973, until the present action, or the Department of Recovery Services even though the Defendant fully resolved and satisfied all child support claims.
8. The Defendant was present in Utah and was not aware of the omission to formally enter the stipulation and was never notified of the omission by any enforcement by the Plaintiff.
9. The Order to Show Cause was continued pending the Stipulation and the matter was still pending and had never been adjudicated.

The broad remedial power to correct injustices in domestic matters under *Utah Code Annotated, 30-4a-1 (1984)*, should have been invoked by the Court in this matter. The Defendant does not need to prove the existence of a written stipulation or unsigned court order under the broad powers granted under the statute as interpreted by the Court in *Horne v. Horne*. In *Horne*, the Court noted that even under the common law power of Nunc Pro Tunc, the Court was allowed to correct errors or supply omissions to the record accurately

reflecting that which in fact took place. The Court could and should have considered the merits of the Defendant's Petition which had never been denied or dismissed.

The expanded scope of the doctrine under the statute should include errors by attorneys in submitting orders as well as the traditional clerical errors. In a domestic matter, the trial Court has continuing equity jurisdiction and the Court should have rendered the unjust, harsh and inequitable situation created without fault of the Defendant personally. This case presents the exact type of situation which the legislature designed the Nunc Pro Tunc Statute. That is, a technical defect unnoticed by one party and not prosecuted by the other party that is brought to the Court's attention pursuant to the continuing power to make equitable decisions in domestic matters.

Therefore, the Court should reverse the trial Court decision and enter an order effective November 28, 1973 setting aside and vacating the alimony provision of the Decree.

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