1988

Wanda Marie Sackett Bagshaw v. Joseph Arthur Bagshaw : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

The Court below was correct in determining that good cause did not exist for the Court to make a nunc pro tunc order modifying the divorce decree to eliminate alimony because an enforceable agreement to modify the decree had not been arrived at between the parties.

ARGUMENT

POINT NO. I: GOOD CAUSE DOES NOT EXIST THAT WOULD JUSTIFY A NUNC PRO TUNC ORDER MODIFYING THE DIVORCE DECREE TO ELIMINATE ALIMONY EITHER BASED UPON THE ALLEGED STIPULATION OF NOVEMBER 28, 1973; OR ANY OTHER EVENT SINCE THAT TIME.

If this Court were to accept Appellant's statement of facts

as undisputed, there would still be no basis for any Court to issue a nunc pro tunc order terminating alimony under the statutory provisions of § 30-4a-1 of the Utah Code Annotated (1953) as amended or under the ruling of Horne v. Horne, 737 P.2d 244 (Utah App. 1987) which has interpreted the statute.

The nunc pro tunc statute is significant, primarily because it changes the old common law rule that a nunc pro tunc order could only be entered when errors could be corrected or omissions supplied where a complete and signed agreement had been reached, or a signed order completely made. [See Preece v. Preece, 682 P.2d 298, 299 (Utah 1984)] The focus of the common law rule was to prevent nunc pro tunc orders where substantive issues remained to be resolved and were not resolved, at the time a particular order was sought to be entered. At common law, the presence of a signed agreement or order was viewed as a evidence of finality where a Court would not be required to go back and attempt to determine the intent of the parties.

When the Utah State Legislature passed the provisions of § 30-4a-1 in 1984, it substituted "good cause" as a standard that could overcome the common law rule that a signed agreement or order was required to make the record speak the truth. While the statute did, indeed, give broader discretion to Courts in the use of nunc pro tunc orders in matters related to marriage, it did not alter the focus of a nunc pro tunc order to enter now, what previously had been made. This Court in Horne pointed out that "Statutes are not to be construed as effecting any change in the

common law **beyond which is clearly indicated** [Horne at 248, emphasis added]. In this instance, the common law requirement of a signed order or stipulation was replaced with the standard of good cause, which would allow a Court to enter an order where an agreement or order had not been signed, but the where intent of the parties was obvious and a nunc pro tunc order was justified to avoid manifest injustice. No other aspect of the old common law rule was changed.

Under both the common law rule and the statutory rule there is no room for a court to substitute its substantive opinion of the intent of parties where there is no factual basis to support such findings. The substance of an agreement must be undisputable. The focus of a court under the statutory rule, as under the common law rule, remains procedural; to correct obvious errors and omissions to avoid obvious injustice. In Horne, this Court gave substantial deference to the legislative intent that preceded the statute, citing several examples made by Rep. Lorin Pace during the 3rd reading of House Bill 218 which ultimately became § 30-4a-1. In each example cited by Rep. Pace, the instance of injustice focused on procedural errors and omissions [Horne at 248].

In the facts at bar, the required good cause does not exist that would have justified the Court below in issuing a nunc pro tunc order as prayed by Defendant. There is no question that the Court would have been required to make substantive presumptions if it had attempted to enter a nunc pro tunc order as prayed for by Appellant. Not only was there no signed agreement as required

by the old rule, there was not even a draft of a proposed agreement or order. All the court had to rely on, knowing that Respondent was not at the meeting the day the alleged agreement took place, was the self-serving testimony of Appellant, which on its face does not appear to be anything other than a subjective cry of foul from a man who has only had to pay child support and alimony when forced to by the State of Utah.

Appellant states that he agreed to drop charges of theft of his jeep and a federal income tax return as consideration for the agreement to drop alimony. While the assertion may have some remote resemblance to reasonableness on its face, when viewed under the totality of circumstances, it is, in fact, illusory. The Title to the jeep was in Respondent's name which allowed her to sell it; the income tax return was also made out in her name, along with her ex-husband. While nothing justifies her violation of the decree which awards the jeep to her husband, and nothing justified her signing his name to the check, the failure of Appellant to meet any of his obligations under the decree prior to the alleged agreement on November 28, 1973 had given rise to substantial claims in favor of Respondent that would have more than offset his claims against her had the issues been tried. What benefit was she receiving in turn for her agreement to drop alimony? If anything, she was forfeiting more than she could possibly have lost at trial, just for the privilege of giving up alimony and avoiding the threats made over the jeep and federal check. These facts as purported by Appellant, at close scrutiny,

lack any logical basis to support his conclusions.

In adopting a new standard of "good cause" as the statutory basis for nunc pro tunc, the legislature eliminated the old rule that prevented such an order where no signed order or agreement existed, even in the face of obvious injustice where no substantive dispute existed between parties and their intent was indisputable.

When a nunc pro tunc order was prevented under the old common law rule, where good cause existed, the intent of parties was clear and the injustice was blatant, simply because an order or agreement was not signed through procedural error, the lament of great legal minds has been shrill. Indeed, this Court in Horne cited to one of the more famous quotes of Justice Oliver Wendell Holmes paraphrased by Justice Crockett in his dissent to Daly v. Daly, 533 P.2d 884, 887 (Utah, 1975) as follows:

There is nothing more revolting to one's sense of justice than to have it asserted that something must be done that way because it was so laid down in the reign of Henry IV; and it is even more so, if whatever reason for doing it that way has long since vanished.

Obviously, under the old rule, the requirement of a signature to an order or agreement insured that a nunc pro tunc order did not involve substantive revisions or impositions by a court in making such an order. Though the old rule was effective in preventing a court from substituting its own judgment for that of the parties, it still prevented courts from making equitable changes where the intent of parties was absolutely clear but no signed order or agreement was present. By adopting the standard of "good cause", the legislature provided the needed statutory

relief that gave courts wider discretion to prevent "obvious injustices" [Horne at 248, emphasis added]. In Horne, after clearly enunciating the contrast between the common law rule and statutory requirements for nunc pro tunc orders, This Court reversed the trial Court's entry of a nunc pro tunc order because the nunc pro tunc order did not conform to the expressed language of the parties as had been read into the record, and eliminated any references to the tax consequences of property distribution under the divorce decree. This Court set aside the nunc pro tunc order, stating:

. . . the court either misunderstood the how critical the tax language was to the parties' agreement or substituted its own judgment for that of the parties, and it misused its nunc pro tunc powers to accomplish that aim. [Horne, at 249]

Accordingly, though courts now have wider discretionary powers to enter nunc pro tunc orders, such discretion does not include substantive changes that require a court to substitute its judgment for that of the parties. The new standard of "good cause" still requires that its meaning be determined on a case by case basis, in light of all the surrounding circumstances, as equity and justice require [Id. at 248]. The intent of the parties must be clear, and the order must be used to correct obvious injustice.

In the case at bar, Appellant cries injustice at having to pay 8 years of arrearages under the decree, which is all that the Respondent was legally able to pursue. In this instance, Appellant has confused injustice with inconvenience.

Injustice is having a valid decree where a party has refused

to obey a lawful court order with impunity, knowing that his ex-wife does not have the resources to chase him through court to enforce the order. Injustice is asserting detrimental reliance on purported agreement where nothing was given up in order to claim a substantial financial windfall. Injustice is playing dumb under the pretext of illiteracy when ample resources and time were, and are, available to insure that individuals are represented, and rights are protected. Injustice is relying on years of ignorant bliss as a basis for asserting a self-serving version of a purported agreement should replace a valid and enforceable decree, especially where a person has had ample time and resources to seek proper redress from an unjust decree, if in fact it is unjust.

Clearly, the Court below was correct in its inability to find good cause that would justify a nunc pro tunc order in this matter.

POINT NO. 2: THE COURT'S RULING IN LIGHT OF BROWN V. BROWN IS CORRECT, AND NOT INCONSISTENT WITH THE PROVISIONS OF § 30-4A-1 OF THE UTAH CODE ANNOTATED (1953) AS AMENDED.

In the Minute Entry of August 4, 1988 (Record, Page 89) and the subsequent Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law entered by the Trial Court (Record, Page 135), substantial emphasis is placed on the ruling in Brown v. Brown, 744 P.2d 333 (Utah App. 1987) as the basis of its decision in favor of Respondent.

Brown was handed down by this Court on October 21, 1987, approximately 5 months after its decision in Horne. The rule of

law established in Brown is best stated in the Court's citation to 73 Am.Jur.2d Stipulations § 2 (1974) wherein it states:

. . . unless it is clear from the record that the parties assented, there is no stipulation, and it is provided in many jurisdictions, by rule of court or by statute, that a private agreement or consent between the parties or their attorneys, in respect to the proceedings in a cause, will not be enforced by the court unless it is evidenced by a writing subscribed by a party against whom it is alleged or made, and filed by the clerk or entered upon the minutes of the court. Any other rule would require the court to pass upon the credibility of the attorneys.

This Court goes on to cite the Utah Rules of Practice in District and Circuit Court and their conformity to the Statute of Frauds as further support for the stated requirements of a stipulation.

At first blush, the ruling in Brown seems to contradict the ruling in Horne, and the elimination of a required signature in Horne may have become a red herring that the Appellant would have us chase into the rationale of Brown. A closer look, however, reveals that the two cases are consistent, if not complimentary. In Horne, the discretionary powers of a court to enter a nunc pro tunc order to correct procedural errors and omissions are widened, while in Brown, the standards for assessing the substantive agreement between parties is clarified.

Like the case at bar, Brown involves a dispute over an alleged agreement that took place at a meeting between the parties and their counsel. Unlike this case, however, both parties in Brown were present, the alleged stipulation was recorded by a court reporter, and a written stipulation was sent to counsel for signature of the parties. This Court in Brown reversed the trial

court's order modifying the decree to conform to the agreement as it appeared on the court reporter's transcript and the proposed agreement because the putative stipulation was not evidenced by a writing subscribed by the parties or made orally in open court where a judge would have been involved and likely would have made inquiry of both parties.

Could the trial court have modified the decree in Brown without such a signature under a Horne nunc pro tunc order? The answer is obviously no, in light of all the circumstances. The key to understanding the procedural discretion of Horne in light of the apparent procedural restrictions imposed in Brown lies in this Court's concern for substantive agreement.

A nunc pro tunc order cannot make a past record speak the truth unless the modification is, indeed the truth. The concern of this Court in Brown, and Horne as well, is to determine the actual intent of the parties, without the imposition of a trial court's judgment on substantive issues. In Brown, this Court addresses the issue of substantive agreement by focusing on the common law and statutory requirements of a stipulation.

Basic to a valid stipulation is a meeting of the minds of those involved. The parties must have completed their negotiations in person or through their attorneys acting within the rules of agency. The agreement then is reduced to writing, signed and filed with the clerk or read into the record before the court. [Brown at 335]

Though the ruling in Brown does not necessarily define or limit what constitutes "good cause" to modify an order nunc pro tunc, it does establish the standard by which all substantive agreements, in nunc pro tunc cases and otherwise, will be viewed

to determine the intent of the parties.

In essence, the primary issue before this Court in the case at bar is whether or not the parties entered into an enforceable stipulation that would justify a nunc pro tunc order to modify the decree. Basic to that issue is whether or not there was a meeting of the minds between the parties. The record clearly indicates there was not.

In spite of Appellant's assertions about what constitutes good cause and how his rights have been impaired by the strict imposition of procedural requirements in Brown, all of which seem to trail through Appellant's brief like a knight in search of the Holy Grail, the one issue that Appellant has not, and cannot overcome, is the fact that there was no meeting of the minds on November 28, 1973, nor has there been since that time.

In spite of Plaintiff/Appellant's representation to the contrary, (Testimony of Wanda Bagshaw, Page 21 - Addendum Exhibit "F"), Appellant would have the Court believe that there really was a meeting of the minds based upon his version of the November 28, 1973 meeting, and upon a minute entry (Record, Page 23) that purports to verify such a meeting of the minds because "the alimony was the primary contention of the parties" (Appellant's Brief, Page 14). Since the minute entry makes reference to a pending stipulation, and since Appellant would never had agreed to continue alimony, the reference to a "pending stipulation" must mean that Respondent agreed to the demands of her ex-husband, even though she testified she never agreed, nor authorized her

attorney to agree. Obviously such reasoning is wholly without merit, and is as far from "good cause" as it can get.

Whether or not Rule 4.5(b) of the Utah Rules of Practice were in effect in 1973, the Statute of Frauds provisions found at § 25-5-4 of the Utah Code Annotated (1953) as amended, had been in effect in substantially the same form for almost a century. Here, the Appellant would have us modify a decree based upon his representations of an oral agreement that purportedly took place 15 years ago! [emphasis added] This is exactly the type of situation that the Statute of Frauds has intended to avoid since its earliest inception in our common law heritage.

In short, the principles set forth in Brown have been applied correctly to the case at bar. There was no meeting of the minds between the parties on November 28, 1973; nor has there been since. There is no testimony in the record that can reasonably infer that a meeting of the minds took place. There is no writing or record before the Court that specifies the substantive agreement, if any, that was purportedly reached on November 28, 1973. The Court below had no choice but to rule that an enforceable stipulation had not, and has not taken place so as to justify a nunc pro tunc order modifying a valid decree in this matter.

POINT NO. 3: RESPONDENT SHOULD BE AWARDED COSTS AND ATTORNEY'S FEES INCURRED IN THIS APPEAL.

There is ample evidence in this matter that Respondent has been, and continues to be, financially unable to bear the cost of enforcing her rights under the decree. At the outset of the

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